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U.S. Department of Justice

Federal Bureau of Investigation

In Reply, Please Refer to

File No. ‘Post Office Box 592418, AMF
Miami International Airport
Miami, Florida 33159

July 11, 1984

Sam Martin

Chief of Police

Hollywood Police Department
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywood, Florida 33021

RE: HENRY LEE LUCAS;
OTTIS ELWOOD TOOLE;
"HANDS OF DEATH CULT";
DOMESTIC POLICE COOPERATION

Dear Sir:
Enclosed for your information are the following:

l. Interview with Ottis Elwood Toole, inmate,
Williamson County Jail, Georgetown, Texas on March 27, 1984.

2. Interview with Henry Lee Lucas, inmate,
Williamson County Jail, Georgetown, Texas on May 14, 1984,

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) is aware
that your law enforcement agency has interviewed both Lucas
and Toole in depth regarding the Adam Walsh case.

The foregoing interviews of Toole and Lucas are
being furnished your Department for the purpose of intelligence
information. These same interviews have been furnished to
other selected law enforcement agencies throughout the United
States in an effort to determine whether there has come to
their attention any information regarding a satanic cult
known as the "Hands of Death."

Information was received by FBI, Austin, Texas,
during May, 1984, through the Criminal Intelligence Section,
Department of Public Safety, Austin, Texas, that guite ,
possibly the information regarding the cult was fabricated . —-.
by Lucas.. , L e
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Any positive information concerning the existence

of this satanic cult would sincerely be appreciated. Do
not hesitate to contact me at the Fort Lauderdale Office
of the FBI, telephone number 765-1990.

Thanking you in advance for your cooperative
assistance in matters of mutual interest.

Very truly yours,

JOSEPH V. CORLESS
Special Agent in Charge

s —

JAMES F. BRENNAN, JR.
Supervisory Special Agent
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OTTIS ELWOOD TOOLE, currently incarcerated in the
Williamson County Jail, Georgetown, Texas was advised of the
identity of the interviewing agent as well as the nature of the
interview. TOOLE was advised of his constitutional rights as
set forth on the Interrogation: Advice of Rights form, and advised
that he would be willing to speak to the interviewing agent without
a lawyer present and that he understood his rights. 4

TOOLE advised that he first became acquainted with a cult
known as the "Hands of Death” when he was about sixteen or
seventeen years old and living in Jacksonville, Florida, prior to
the time he ever met HENRY LEE LUCAS. TOOLE explained that he had
been involved in using various types of narcotics and drinking alcohol
and associating with similar individuals when he met an older man named
BILL, Last Name Unknown (LNU), a white male approximately forty vyears
old. TOOLE stated the he does not know what occupation BILL had at
the time nor anything else about him and he has not seen him for many
years. TOOLE explained that he is now.thirty-seven years old and
this took place about twenty years ago.

TOOLE stated that BILL told him that he believed in witch-
craft, Buddha's and spirits of the devil and that there was a cult
of individuals who believed similarly. TOOLE stated that one night
BILL agreed to take him to a meeting of the cult, known as the "Hands
of Death”. TOOLE stated that BILL drove him approximately five or
six hours south of Jacksonville and at one point tied ecloth around
his eyes so that he would not see where he was going. TOOLE stated
that they arrived at their destination and BILL and TOOLE got into
an air boat and traveled for an unrecalled period of time through the
Evergladeés to a very remote spot. At one point, TOOLE stated that he
thought the area to which they went was an island since it had a lot
of water around it; however, it was nighttime while he was there and
he is not sure.

After getting out of the air boat, TOOLE stated that he
was allowed to look around and saw a large number of people, men
and women, present dressed in gowns, many wearing masks of animals
such as cows and rooster heads on their heads. TOOLE observed that
some of the ones who did not have any masks on had very long hair and
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beards. TOOLE stated that BILL wore a sheet or gown that had two
eyes holes and a mouth hole cut out for the head area and over the
top of his head he strapped two cow's horns. TOOLE observed what
appeared to be a large altar that had a cloth spread over it and
many swords, machetes, butcher knives, hatchets and axes around

it. TOOLE added that there was a large cross with some type of
hands at the bottom. TOOLE explained that at subsequent meetings
the hands he observed were carved out of wood on some occasions and
other occasions they would be glass or actual skelton's hands. BILL
told TOOLE that he would have to participate in the ceremony and that
they were going to take someone's life so that the devil would have

more spirits.

TOOLE advised that about this time a young white female
walked up to the altar and stripped off all of her clothing and
laid down on the altar. TOOLE observed several people with hypodermic
needles shooting an unknown chemical into her arms two or three times
and he thought the girl looked as though she was under the inf{luence
of some sort of drug. TOOLE stated that an individual (he could not
say whether it was a man or a woman) wearing a hood over their head
took a machete and cut the girl's throat wide open. TOOLE also observe.
that there was a calf there and that the calf's throat was cut about
the same time. Others caught the woman's blood pouring from her throat
in a pan that they put next to her neck and the calf's blood was
caught in a different pan. TOOLE stated that the individual that
had killed the girl rubbed the calf's blood and her own blood over
her body with his hands and TOOLE was told that he would have to drinl
the blood of both the calf and the girl. TOOLE hesitated and he was
told that he would have to do it in a hurry before it clotted so he
did so. TOOLE added that several men got on the altar and had inter-
course with the girl's body including TOOLE himself and others had
intercourse with the dead calf. _

TOOLE stated that the people next pulled the cloth out
from underneath the girl and he observed that there was a iron
grate underneath it. Logs and other bits of wood were put under
the iron grate and it was all set afire in order to burn the body
of the girl as well as the calf's body which had been put next to
the girl.

TOOLE observed that there was a lot of meat roasting on
various fires in the area and he thought that it was probably pig
meat as well as a lot of fruit such as apples. After the girl was
killed and the ceremony had taken place, everyone ate and TOOLE observed
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several mutilating the girl's body, cutting her with knives. TOOLL
stated that he ate what he thought were barbegue ribs and was told
afterwards that he had eaten the girl's ribs. TOOLE stated that thore
was a lot of drinking, smoking of marijuana and individuals taking

some unknown pills,

TOOLE estimated that there were approximately 100 people
present at the ceremony and numercus alr boats in which they had
arrived. After a time, the individuals started getting into their

air boats to leave and BILL told TOOLE that while he was not a full
member, he was considered to be a member of the cult.

TOOLE related that sometime during his first vears as
a member he was taken thvough a sort of training course where he
was taught how to shoot various weapons, usc butcher knives and
axes and how to beat a person to death. TOOLE stated that the
training lasted five or six weelks and took place in a remote arca
of the Florida Bverglades. TOOLY stated that rhe training also
included instruction in climbing building rainspouts and entering
locked houses. TOOLE added that he still does not know why he was
taught to climb buildings. He recalls that there were about twelve
people in his training group comprised of both men and women. TOOLE
added that after he completed his training he had to train others.
The last time he did so was several years ago.

After this, TOOLE advised that once or twice a month he
would get a mysterious postcard at his home in Jacksonville, Florida
which would state, "Meet me at...on....'". TOOLE stated that a place
and a date and time would be filled in and it would frequently be
some place like a restaurant or a truck stop. TOOLE explained that
he does not read very well so he would have someone else read the posL
card for him. TOOLE stated that this was frequently one of the drunks
he vould pick up in the Jacksonville area. Once TOOLE arrived at the
meeting place, someone would meet him and take him to a remote location
for a repeat of the ceremony described above. TOOLE stated that some-
times the locations were old country graveyards and sometimes out in
the Everglades. TOOLE stated that he could not tell if he ever went
back to the location of the first meeting since it was dark and he
was not sure where he was. TOOLE advised that this pattern continued
up until he was jailed on June 6, 1983; however, on occasion there
would be a two or three month gap between the ceremonies. TOOLE
related that these ceremonies took place in nearly all of the states
of the union but he cannot recall any specific locations. The last
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meeting that he ‘attended was in Arizona approximately two to three
months prior to his jailing in June, 1983. TOOLE stated that he
received a postcard at his home address, 1139 North Market Street,
Jacksonville, Florida which told him to meet someone at an unrecalled
location in Arizona on a specific date and at a specific time. TOOLE
stated that he drove his car to Arizona and attended a ceremony such
as the one described above in a very remote location, possibly in the
desert but near enough that he could see mountains.

TOCLE advised that after he had been a member for a time,
he was told that it was his turn to kill and he obliged by chopping
off the head of a girl that was sacrificed at this particular meetiny.
TOOLE stated that he had intercourse with the body and then drank her
biood. TOOLE added that at one meeting he asked those present ii he
could use a gun instead of a knife to kill the victim and someonc
produced a pistol afterwhich he shot the femule victim point blank
in the head. TOOLE stated that females were not the only victims and
sometimes men were used as victims. TOOLE stated that he was told
that he could never drop out of the cult once he was a member and the

victims were individuals who had tried to drop out. TOOLE stated that

he went alone to the last meeting in Arizona and that he did not meet
HENRY LEE LUCAS through the cult., TOOLE stated that he took LUCAS to
a meeting years ago (exact time period unrecalled) but TOOLE related
several times that he thought that LUCAS was a member of the cult
before TOOLE was although LUCAS never said so. At first, TOOLE did
not recall ever being picked up by an individual while hitchhiking
with LUCAS after which the individual giving them a ride told them
about the cult. Later, TOOLE said that he does remember being picked
up by some individual who talked to him and LUCAS about the cult but
that he was already a member of the cult when this occurred. He could
not recall the time period that he and LUCAS were picked up and told
about the cult by this unknown individual. TOOLE could not recall
where this incident took place.

TOOLE stated that LUCAS has a tattoo of a cross with hands
at the base and flames of fire in the web of his right hand and that
this is a sign of the members of the Hands of Death. When asked why
he did not have such a tattoo, TOOLE stated only that he just never
got one but that he wore a ring with a devil's head on it as did some
of the members of the cult. TOOLE related that the first meeting of
the cult that he took LUCAS to was held in the Everglades and LUCAS
did not state that he was previously aware of the cult during this
ceremony. ‘
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TOOLE was asked how he would recognize the individual
that was to pick him up at his meeting place and take him to the
ceremonies. TOOLE replied that he "reckoned that they just kept
up with where you were at". When pressed, TOOLE replied that the
postcards’' told him to sit in a certain place and that was how the
other member could recognize him. When pressed further, TOOLE
stated that the person meeting him would give the password "“Hands'.
This would confirm to TOOLE that they were member of the cult.

TOOLE stated that when he killed pecple on his own and
not at a ceremony he was required to bring back something from the
dead person such as some identification, clothing, jewelery, etc.
If there was not a meeting of the cult in the near future, he was
told to put these items beside a particular garbaze can, light post,
etc. -and in a plastic bag or paper bag so that a member of the cult
could verify his kill. TOOLE again stated that he "reckoned that
thev kept pretty good track of their people" and would know where
and when to pick up the dead person's belongings. TOOLE related
that he did not always comply since he sometimes sold the belongings
of this victims and on several occasions at a cult meeting he was
asked by other members why he had becn selling his victim's belonging:
as if they were watching him and knew what he had been doing. '

TOOLE stated that he did not know the names of any of the
individuals in the group since they did not use names other than BILL,
described above.

TOOLE added that after he killed his victims he was required
to have sex with the dead person as part of the ritual and on occasiomn
he killed his victims. while he was having sex with them, both men and
women. TOOLE stated "thdat he usually chopped the victims up afterwards
as part of his witchcraft and devil worship routine since that would
give him more of the devils's spirit. In addition, TOOLE related that
he usually drank the blood of his victims. TOOLE added that he some-
times killed animals but when he killed people on his own he was not
required to kill animals either before or afterward as part of the
ritual.

TOOLE stated that he killed people in a large number of
the states of the union and in different ways so that law enforcement
officials could not catch on to what was going on. TOOLE added that
he burned several of his victims after killing them since "'fires
excite him". TOOLE added that he had been setting fires since he was
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five or six vears old and has comnitred arson all over the United
States.

TOOLE stated that he killed ADAM WALSH, the young boy from
Hollywood, Florida whose head was found in a canal there. TOOLE said
that after tutting off the boy's head, he put the body in the trunk
of his car and drove all the way to Jackbonv1lle Florida where he
cremated the body. TOOLE stated that officers were unable to find
any blood in his car since he scrubbed it down very well after the
killing. TOOLE stated that no one cver asked him to kidnap anv
children for them and ADAM WALSH was the voungest he ever kidnaped
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and killed. TOOLE stated that whenever he kidnaped anyone it was on &

i his own and he never kidnaped anyone to turn them over to someone
i else as he always killed his victims.

e TOOLE added that he was not required to prove every klllln"
£8 someone in the cult and he has no way oi knOWlnE how to contact
any members of the cult. TOOLE stated that he always wondered why
they ‘could locate him and send him a postcard wherever he was living.
TOOLE stated that he usually left forwarding addresses.

At first, TOOLE stated that he has not had any conversation
with HENRY LEE LUCAS since they were both jailed regarding the cult
except for one telephone conversation when TOOLE told LUCAS "hands,
cross, fire", and LUCAS replied "that's right'. Somewhat later,
TOOLE stated that he could have talked about the cult to LUCAS
since they were jailed but he does not recall any ‘specifics.
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HENRY LEE LUCAS, Inmate, Williamson County Jail,

Georgetown, Texas, was advised of the identity of the interviewing
agent as well as his Constitutional Rights as set forth on the
Interrogation: Advice of Rights form. LUCAS indicated that he
understood the purpose of the interview as well as his rights
and that he would be willing to answer questions without his
artorney present:

LUCAS advised that he first became arquainted with the
Satanic cult group known as "Hands of Death' in 1978 while he was
traveling from Maryland enroute to California with his brother-in-law,
WADE KAISER. LUCAS stated that they were in Maryland waiting to
cross a bridge which was closed down. The traffic was stopped and
a car pulled along side LUCAS' car. The driver of the other vehicle
began talking to KATSER and LUCAS and during the conversation LUCAS
mentioned that he needed work. The other driver said that he wanted
to talk more with LUCAS and would stop at a roadside park on the
other side of the bridge once traffic started moving again.

LUCAS stated that after the other driver stopped he and
KAISER pulled into the rocadside park and the other man, who identified
himself as DON METRIC, said that he had work for LUCAS and asked Lucas
to accompany him to Shreveport, Louisiana. LUCAS agreed and left his

‘brother-in-law and drove to Shreveport with METRIC in METRIC's car.

Once they arrived in Shreveport, METRIC told LUCAS that the job he

had for him was to run stolen cars. LUCAS told METRIC that he could
not do so since he was inveolved in killing people and could not afford
to be picked up by the police in a stolen car.

METRIC told LUCAS that the fact that LUCAS was involved in
killing people was just fine since he was a member of an organization
that LUCAS could join which was known as the "Hands of Death'. METRIC
explained to LUCAS that the organization was involved in rituals which
were supposed to ''reincarnate' the devil. These rituals involved
killing people in different ways including crucifixions. LUCAS
stated that he told METRIC he could not join at that rime since he
had to return to Maryland to straighten out a few things hut would
return and speak to METRIC about it at a later date. METRIC told
LUCAS to go to Miami, Florida instead as that was where METRIC
would be. METRIC described for LUCAS a warehouse where he normally
could be found during the day and told LUCAS to contact him there.

investigation an

];}f
oy__SA GREGORY R. RAMPTON/dg

5/14/84 s__Georgetown. Texas . _ries__ SA 67D

\

)
Dateaictated_______ . 5/17/84

|
This document contains neither recornmendations nar conclusions af the FRI. It is the praperty of the FBI ang is [Daned (o your agevo;602_5
il and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

FBI/ D7)



LA TP L ERTU Y] PRERPY TR

crasis
Fiiin

£
e
o

L4

SA 62D-

. HENRY LEE LUCAS . = 5/14/84 " -

LUCAS recalled that the!warebouse was in the warehouse
district of Miami and could be found by following the road which |
goes to the pier area of Miami. At a point where this road crosses
a heach, the warehouse could be found by following the beach south
to the third warehouse on the right-hand side. LUCAS stated that |
there are two roads going to the pier area in Miami, cne going to ‘
an island and the other not going to an island. ©LUCAS stated that
the road which does not go to an island is the road that crosses
the beach desscribed above. LUCAS described the warehouse as an
old one which stores different types of equipment to be shipped
over seas. LUCAS said that some stolen merchandise is also handled
through the warehouse by METRIC. LUCAS added that he believes that
the road going to the pier area that he described above is the first
road that crosses the Everglades once vou arrive in Miami but that
it should be followed east towards the ocean.

LUCAS advised that he returned to Maryland and remained
there for the rest of 1978. lie had an argument with his sister
sometime in February of 1979 and he departed Maryland in his sister's
pick-up and drove to Florida. He contacted OTTIS TOOLE in Jacksonville
Florida and took him to Miami where they met METRIC in his warehouse.
METRIC talked to both TOOLE and LUCAS about joining the '""Hands of
Death" and told them that they would have to go into the Everglades

to be trained,

LUCAS stated that METRIC took them to a campsite inside the
Everglades which could be reached by traveling to the first road
crossing the Everglades north of Miami which is a turnpike or some
similar road. Go another two miles north of this road on the north/
south turnpike and there is a pier area off the side of the road,

LUCAS stated that when they arrived at the pier area they were loaded
into an airboat and taken for approximately a one half hour ride to

an island inside the Everglades. LUCAS stated that the campsite there
was camouflaged in that the buildings were huilt out of old trees whirch
blended with the scenery. When he arrived, LUCAS observed approximatelw
100 people in the campsite taking different types of training. During
the six weeks TOOLE and LUCAS spent at the campsite, many people came
and went and during the period LUCAS estimated that there were probably
1000 people in and out of the campsite. LUCAS stated that some were
being trained, some were getting different kinds of equipment and

some were "reporting” on murders they had committed.

LUCAS stated that when he first arrived at the campsite he
was tested as are all new members of the organization. The test consist.
of having to kill someone who is stripped naked in front of the person
being tested. The person being tested is told how they should kill
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the victim. LUCAS stated that he:was asked to kill a white male
approximately twenty years old who had been a member of the organization
and apparently had not done as he was told. LUCAS was told to kill him
by shooting him and then cutting up his body on a sort of altar which
was there. The altar consisted of a flat rock in the shape of =a

table top supported by rock pillars. LUCAS stated that he killed the
man and cut him up after which some of the man's body parts were taken
and eaten by people who were there. LUCAS added that TOOLE ate some

of the body parts and assisted LUCAS in killing the man and cufting

him up. LUCAS refused to eat any of the hodv parts and never has
indulged in that kind of activity. LUCAS advised that he did not

think that TOQLE had ever had any knowledge of this organization

prior to their going to the campsite in 1979; however, TOQLE recently
told LUCAS that he knew all about the cult long before LUCAS did but
never told LUCAS before now.

T.UCAS advised that the training they were given consisted of
classes on the types of evidence police look for in murders and how to
avoid leaving evidence such as fingerprints. TUCAS added that they
were told that if they ever shot someone thev would hdve to have the
gun rebored so that no one could tell that it was the murder weapon.
They were also told how to enter homes to murder but make the hreak-in
look like it was a common burglary. They were also instructed as to
how bodies should be transported without being noticed and how to
communicate with other members without detection. When asked how
this was done, LUCAS only replied that he was instructed to memorize
the faces of the other members so that they would recognize oneanother
when they met in different parts of the country. 'LUCAS added that
when he met another member he would engage the member in a discussion
about certain aspects of -the cult as well as the places of previous
meetings in order to see if the other member really knew the '
organization and was a member in fact. LUCAS stated that after the
training period he and TOOLE were told to commit two killings per
week and to kill animals along with the victims. They were also
told to mutilate the human bodies and if they could not then they
were to mutilate the animal body so as to transfer the human spirit
into the animal and thereafter into the devil, LIUCAS estimated that
he has killed just as many animals as humans. '

LUCAS stated that he and TOOLF returned to the Everglades
campsite every month for about four months following their initial
training and each time they were picked up at the roadside pier describc
above and taken in an airboat to the campsite then returned after they
reported where their victims were hidden and how they had been killed
and mutilated. After about four months, METRIC told them that they had

done such a good job that they only had to return once a year. METRIC
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added that if they ever picked up any merchandise they wanted to get
rid of, they should take it to his warehouse in Miami and the monev

obtained from the sale of the merchandise would go to the '"Hands of
Death" organization.

: LUCAS stated that members can also recognize one another
by a tattoo that they should have on their right hand in the web
between.the thumb and forefinger. LUCAS stated that tattoo is of
a cross, flames and hands. LUCAS added that some members have the
tattoo of a snake and others the tattoo of a scorpion. He said that
the individuals with tattoos of the hands, cross and flames were
people who 'go on the road to kill, committing burglaries, robberiecs,
etc."”. The people who have the tattoo of a snake are kidnapers and
the people with the tattoo of a scorpion are ritual killers who kill
for the cermonies the cult engages in. LUCAS displayed his tattoo
and said that it was nearly worn off. By observation it was determined
that there is nn tattoo in the web of his right hand between the thumh
and forefinger but there are some very faint dark lines whose shape
could not be discerned.

LUCAS advised that he was given specific assignments by
METRIC on behalf of the cult on occasjon. Once TOOLE called LUCAS
from San Antonio, Texas and asked LUCAS to travel from Maryland to
San Antonio since he had an assignment to kill two millionaires in
Bastrop, Texas. LUCAS traveled to San Antonio and met TOOLE and they
traveled to the home of the two millionaires. LUCAS said that he wait.
outside while TOOLE killed the man and his wife after which they loaded
their bodies in a wvan and LUCAS and TOOLE drove ta Rerno, Hevada where
they dumped the bodies in the desert nearby. TLUCAS advised that an
unknown lady in Houston, Texas had hired the "Hands of Death” to commir
the killings and the assignment had been given to TOOLE. LUCAS said
that he and TOOLE got $5,000 each for the murder. LUCAS used his S5, 0i
to purchase a travel trailer. ,

LUCAS advised that he has attended meetings of the cult
irregularly and the last meeting he attended was in 1981 in the
Everglades. Some of the meetings were held on a deserted beach
just south of Fort Lauderdale, Florida. These meetings are held once
a year during June or July -and sometimes 75-100 pecple would attend
although they usually broke up into smaller groups of 20 or sc so as not
to attract attention. The parties usually consist of worship services
where they pray to the devil, and dances, sex and narcotics. LUCAS
recalled that once they were checked out by the local pelice but since
they were doing nothing wrong the police left them alone. LUCAS said
that there were no murders committed on the beach during these partics
since they could not hide the bhodies that well. He said that the murder
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were usually committed in the Everglades where they could easily
dump the bodies.

LUCAS added that he has attended meetings outside of Florida
in Indiana (twice) at a campsite near a river. LUCAS stated that this
campsite could be located by traveling east of Tndianapolis on a

highway (possibly Highway 41) about twelve to fourteen miles to a river

Once arriving at the river, one sould travel south of the bridge along
the riverbank a short distance and the campsite could be located there.

LUCAS also stated that he received an assignment once from
METRIC to kill President CARTER. This assignment was given in 1979
and LUCAS followed CARTER to several different locations in Washington
D.C. and once to Palm Springs, California but did not kill CARTER
although he had several opportunities to shoot him. LUCAS understood
that he was given the assignment because of various laws that were bei.
passed that the "Hands of Death"” organization did not want passed.

LUCAS also said that the death squads in El Salvador are bei:
set up by the "Hands of Death'" organization out of Miami. When asked
how he knew this, LUCAS replied that he knows because they are being
set up out of Miami and guns are being sent to the death squads from
Miami. LUCAS said that the death squads have been in existence long
before the United States was aware of it and that he once was even askc
to go to El Salvador to join the sqguads and kill people. LUCAS said t&
he refused but did take assignments to go to Spain and Canada where he
committed some killings.

LUCAS said that be killed a high ranking civilian in Spain
in May of 1979 after having been given the assignment by the cult.
METRTC only told him to kill but gave him no reason and LUCAS traveled
to Spain and shot the man. Two months before that, LUCAS said that he
and TOOLE traveled to Spain and killed an entire family as this was

TOOLE's assignment from the cult. LUCAS said that he and TOOLE travele:

to Spain on a boat and got their passports in Jacksonville, Florida.
Later, in 1980 or 1981, he traveled to Canada and killed six to eight
people including some businessmen as an assignment from the cult.

LUCAS added that he has also been involved in a lot of
kidnapings in which he has kidnaped people "to order" LUCAS explained

that he was told by METRIC to kidnap a person of a spec1f1c age, height.

weight, hair color and take them through El1 Paso to a location outside
of Monterey, Mexico. LUCAS said that children were sometimes kidnaped
and taken to Mexico for adoption purposes and older women were kidnaped
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and taken to Mexico for prostitution purposes. LUCAS said that METRIC
normally gives him his assignments and be last saw METRIC in 1981 in
Miami. LUCAS said that METRIC used to live in Shreveport, Louisiana
but he has since disappeared from the area. LUCAS explained that he
was recently taken by the Shreveport Police Department around Shreveror
and he pointed out the house where METRIC had lived but they determined
that METRIC had left the area.

LUCAS stated that the fbllowing indviduals are also memhers
of the '""Hands of Death':

JACK SMART .

Hemet, California

Race - White

Sex Male

Height oooet2n

Weight 170-180

Age Late 40s

Miscellaneous Sells antique furniture and

is married to OBEARA SMART

LUCAS stated that SMART asked LUCAS in late 1979 to
transport marijuana for the organization and LUCAS did so. Later
on, he also transported "Angel dust" and cocaine. LUCAS advised
that SMART has assisted him in killings in Los Angeles and Palm
Springs, California as well as in the desert near Palm Springs on
an Indian reservation near Beaumont, California. LUCAS has provided
all of rhis information to California authorities but they have been
unable to find any bodies. LUCAS advised that JACK's brother, TONY
SMART, is alo a member.

TONY SMART :

San Jacinto, California

Race White

Sex Male

Occupation Retired - following an injury

he sustained after a fall while
working as a sand blaster

TONY SMART has accompanied JACK SMART and LUCAS on several
killings in California as well. LUCAS srated that TONY SMART's
residence can be located by traveling on Interstate 10 to the
Hemet Exit and follow the road towards Hemet until you arrive at a
blinking light. From there go left to a stop sign and take a right
until you come to a four way stop. At the four way stop go straight
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through and the first trailer park on the right-hand side of the road
is the one where SMART has his trailer. The trailer park is run by
SMART's father and SMART's trailer is the third trailer on the right-
hand side as you go in the first entrance. LUCAS described SMART's
trailer as being gold and yellow in color. LUCAS was last there on

September 30, 1982.

LUCAS stated that one could arrive at JACK SMART's
residence by taking the same directions as above except that after
going through the four way stop, continue straight to a stop light
and turn left towards Hemet. Take the main street to North Hemet
until you come to Hemet Street. Turn right and travel down Hemet
Street until you pass the school and pass a crossroad after going
up a hill, SMART's house is the third house on the left and it has
a steel chain link fence without buildings behind. The house is a
one story white residence with anh attic where JACK SMART usually
hides stolen merchandise. According to LUCAS, JACK SMART also has
dug out secret places under the out buildings where he also hides
stolen merchadise. SMART is married but LUCAS does not know whether
his wife is aware that he has participated in killings. SMART owns
a 1943 brown Dondge ambulance.

BILL and DEBBIE SMITH
Poplar Bluff, Missouri

LUCAS stated that he met them in California in 1981 and
traveled with them for a time. LUCAS was able to get BILL SMITH to
kill some people on the road. LUCAS stated that BILL has a tattoo
of a scorpion on his right arm above his wrist. LUCAS believes
that the Poplar Bluff Police Department traced BILL and DEBBIE SMITH
but they did not confess to being members of the cult. '

RAY DILLON

Suburbs near Washington, D.C.

Race : White

Sex Male

Height &'

Weight S 190-200

Age ‘ Late 40s

Hair . Blondish gray

LUCAS last saw DILLON five years ago and stated that he has
no job but merely roams around the country. According to LUCAS,
DILLON's wife works for some government organization. LUCAS stated
that he has seen DILLON at some of the ""Hands of Death" meetings.
LUCAS described DTLLON as being some kind of an overseer in the
organization. : '
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LUCAS was unable to pro@ide any further information
regarding the "Hands of Death" cult.
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U.S. Department of Justice

Federal Bureau of Investigation

in Raply, Please Refer to
File No.

Sam Martin

Chief of Police :
Hollywood Police Department
3250 Hollywood Boulevard
Hollywood, Florida 33021

Dear Sir:

Post Office Box 592418, AMF
Miami International Airport
Miami, Florida 33159

July 11, 1984

HENRY LEE LUCAS;

OTTIS ELWOOD TOOLE;

"HANDS OF DEATH CULT";
DOMESTIC POLICE COOPERATION

Enclosed for your information are the following:

1. Interview with Ottis Elwood Toole, inmate,
Williamson County Jail, Georgetown, Texas on March 27, 1984.

2. Interview with Henry Lee Lucas, inmate,
Williamson County Jail, Georgetown, Texas on May 14, 1984.

The Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) is awére
that your law enforcement agency has interviewed both Lucas
and Toole in depth regarding the Adam Walsh case. ‘

The foregoing interviews of Toole and Lucas are
being furnished your Department for the purpose of intelligence

information.

These same interviews have been furnished to

other selected law enforcement agencies throughout the United
States in an effort to determine whether there has come to
their attention any information regarding a satanic cult -

known as the "Hands of Death."

Information was received by FBI, Austin, Texas,
during May, 1984, through the Criminal Intelligence Section,
Department of Public Safety, Austin, Texas, that quite
possibly the information regarding the cult was fabricated _-——

by Lucas.
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Any positive information concerning the existence
of this satanic cult would sincerely be appreciated. Do
not hesitate to contact me at the Fort Lauderdale Office
of the FBI, telephone number 765-1990.

, Thanking you in advance for your cooperative
assistance in matters of mutual ‘interest.

Very truly yours,

JOSEPH V., CORLESS _
Special Agent in Charge

=

JAMES F. BRENNAN, JR.
Supervisory Special Agent
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OTT1S ELWOOD TOOLE, currently incarcerated in the
Williamson County Jail, Georgezown, Texis was advised of the
identity of the intervicwing agent as well a= =he nature of the
inrerview. TOOLE was advised ol his counstituzional rights as
set forth on the Interrogation: Advice of Rights form, and adviscd
that he would be willing to speak to the interviewing agent without
a lawyer present and that he understood his rights.

TOOLE advised that he first became acquainted with a cult
known as the ''Hands of Death” when he was about sixteen or
seventeen years old and living in Jacksonville, Florida, prior to
the time he ever met HENRY LEE LUCAS. TOOLE explained that he had

been involved in using various types of narcotics and drinking alcoho.
and associating with similar individuals when he met an older man nare

BILL, Last Name Unknown (LNU), a white male approximately forty years
old. TOOLE stated the he does not know what occupation BILL had at
the time nor anything else about him and he has not seen him for many
years. TOOLE explained that he is now thirty-seven years old and
this took place about twenty vears ago.

TOOLE stated that BILL told him that he believed in witch-
‘craft, Buddha's and spirits of the devil and that there was a cult
of individuals who believed similarly. TOOLE stated that one night
BILL agreed to take him to a meeting of the cult, known as the ''Hands
of Death. TOOLE stated that BILL drove him approximately five or
six hours south of Jacksonville and at one point tied cloth around
his eyes so that he would not see where he was going. TOOLL stated
that they arrived at their destination and BILL and TOOLE got into
an air boat and traveled for an unrecalled period of time through the
Everglades to a very remote spot. At one point, TOOLE stated that he
thought the area to which they went was an island since it had a lot
of water around it; however, it was nighttime while he was there and
he is not sure. ' ' '

After getting out of the air boat, TOOLE stated that he
was allowed to look around and saw a large number of people, men
and women, present dressed in gowns, many wearing masks of animals
such as cows and rooster heads on their heads. TOOLE observed that
some of the ones who did not have any masks on had very long hair anc
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beards. TOOLE stated that BILL wore a sheet or gown that had two
eyes holes and a mouth iole cut out for the head area and over the
rop of his hecad he strapped two cow's horns. TONLE observed what

appeired to be a large altar <hat had o zloth spread over it and
nanv swords, machetes, butcher knrives, nhacchets and axes round
{r. TOOLE added that there was a larpe crouss with some type of

hands at the bottom. TOOLE expiained that at subsequent meetings

the hands he observed werc carved out of wood on some occasions and
other occasions they would be glass or actual skelton's haads. BILL
told TOOLE that he wouid have to participate in the ceremonv and that
they were going to take someone’'s lifc so that the devil would have
more spirits.

TOOLE advised that zbout this time a young white female
walked up to the altar and stripped off all of her clothing and
laid down on the altar. TOOLE observed several people with hypodermic
needles shooting an unkrown chemical into her arms two or three time:
and he thought the girl looked as though she was under the influence
of some sort of drug. TOOLE stated that an individual (he could not
say whether it was a man or a woman) wearing a hood over their head
took a machete and cut the zirl's throat wide open. TOOLE also obserw«
that there was a calf there and that the calf's throat was cut about
the same time. Others caught the woman's blood pouring from her throa:
in a pan that they put next to her neck and the calf s blood was
caught in a different pan. TOOLE stated that the individual that
had killed the girl rubbed the calf's blood and her own blood over
her body with his hands and TOOLE was told that he would have to drink
the blood of both the calf and the girl. TOOLE hesitated and he was
told that he would have to do it in a hurry before it clotted so he
did so.. TOOLE added that several men got on the altar and had inter-
course with the girl's body including TOOLE himself and others had
intercourse with the dead calf. '

_ TOOLE stated that the people next pulled the cloth out
from underneath the girl and he observed that there was a iron
grate underneath it. Logs anc other bits of wood were put under
the iron grate and it was all set afire in order to burn the bodv
of the girl as well as the calf's body which had been put next to
the girl.

] _TOOLE observed that there was a lot of meat roasting on
various fires in the area and he thought that it was probably pig
meat as well as a lot of fruit such as apples. After the girl was

gilledlahd the ceremony had taken place, everyonme ate and TOOLE obserwo:.
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ceveral mutilating the girl's body, cutting her with nives. TOOLY
stared that he ate what he thought were hardee’ o ribs and was tola
Aftcrvaris that he nad eaten the piri's vribd. TOULL stated that o
was a Lot of drinking. smoking of rarijuuna and inds i
some unhnown piils. '

TOOLE estimated that there were appreximarely L0OG pooplo
present at the ceremony and numerous air beats in which the: had
arrived. After a time, the individuals started getting .into theiv
4:1 boats to leave and BILL told TOOLE that while he was not a full
rerber, he was considered to be a member of the enult. '

TOOLE related that sometime durirg his first vears os
a pemiber he was taken through a sort of training course where hoe
was taught how to shoot various weaponsi, use butcher knives and
aves and how to beat a person to death. TOOLE stated that the
training lasted five or siz weeks and took place in a rewore aren
of the Tlerida Everglades. TOOLE stated that the training also
incluced instruction in climbing building rainspouts and entering
locked houses. TOOLE added that he still does not know why he was
taught to climb buildings. He recalls that there were about twelve
people in nis training group comprised of both men and women. TOOLE
added that after he completed his training he had to train others.
The last time he did so was several years ago. '

, After this, TOOLE advised that once or twice a month he
would get a mysterious postcard at his home in Jacksonville, Florida
which would state, '"Meet me at...on....". TOOLE stated that a place
and a date and time would be filled in and it would frequently be
some place like a restaurant or a truck stop. TOOLE explained that
he does not read very well so he would have someone else read the pos.
card for him. TOOLE stated that this was frequently one of the drunl.
he tould pick up in the Jacksonville area. Once TOOLE arrived at the

meeting place, someone would meet him and take him to a remote locatlion
for a repeat of the ceremony described above. TOOLE stated that some-

times the locations were old country graveyards and sometimes out in
the Everglades. TOOLE stated that he could not tell if he ever went
back to the location of the first meeting since it was dark and he
was not sure where he was. TOOLE advised that this pattern continued
up until he was jailed on June 6, 1983; however, on occasion there
would be a two or three month gap between the ceremonies. TOOLE
related that these ceremonies tock place in nearly all of the states
of the union but he cannot recall any specific locations.  The last
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meeting that he attended was in Arizona approxit.otely two to three
~anths prior *o his jailing iv June, 1983, TOGL- srared that he

received a posteard at his howe address, L1139 Lorin Harkot Street
Tacksonville, Florida which rold him to weet seno e ot oan unrecal ol
locition in Arizonma on o specific date and at a speciflic time. TNULL

stated that he drove his car to Arizona and attenied o ceremony s'nh
25 the one described above in a very remote locazion, possibly in Ine
desert but near enough that he could see mountiiIns.

TOCLE advised that after he had been » memher for a time.

he was told that it was his turn te kill and ne .o liged by chopping
off the head of a girl that was sacrificed at this particular meetin-
TOOLE stated that he hkad intercourse with the boly and then dranw her
biood. TOOLE added that at one meeting he asked those present LT he

could use a gun instead of a knitfe to kill the viotim and someonc
roduced a pistol afterwhich he shot the femule victim point blank
in the head. TOOLE statcd thar females were not the only wvictims an.
sometimes mon were used as victims. TOOLE stated fhat he was told
that he could never drop out of the cult once he was a member and the
victims were individuals who had tried to drop cuc. TOOLE stated tha:
he went alone to the last meeting in Arizona and that he did not meet
HENRY LEE LUCAS through the cult. TOOLE stated that he took LUCAS to
a meeting years ago (exact time period unrecalled) but TOOLE related
several times that he thought that LUCAS was a member of the cult
before TOOLE was although LUCAS never said so. aAc first, TOOLE did
not recall ever being picked up by an individual while hitchhiking
with LUCAS after which the individual giving them a ride told them
about the cult. Later, TOOLE said that he does remember being picked
up by some individual who talked to him and LUCAS about the cult but
that he was already a-member of the cult when this occurred. He could
not recall the time period that he and LUCAS were picked up and told
about the cult by this unknown individual. TCOLE could not recall
where this incident took place. '

(T =

’ TOOLE stated that LUCAS has a tattoo of a cross with hands
at the base and flames of fire in the web of his right hand and that
this is a sign of the members of the Hands of Death. When asked why
he did not have such a tattoo, TOOLE stated onlwv that he just never
got one but that he wore a ring with a devil's head on it as did some
of the members of the cult. TOOLE reclated that the first meeting of
the cult that he took LUCAS to was held in the Everglades and LUCAS

did not state that he was previously aware of the cult during this
ceremony. :
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TOOLE was asked how he would recognize the individual
that was to pick him up at his meeting ploce @ wd rake bim to the
coreranies.  TOOLE roplied rhat he "reckened -l thew fast Tept

a1

up wirth where you were at Whern pressed, 10074
postcards told him to =it in o certain place avi o Jas
other member could recognize him. When presse.l Tuvther. TOOLE
stated that the person mecting him would give the password "Hands
This would confirm to TOOLE that they were membier of the cult

1~ -

Lhat the

Row tho

TOOLE stated that when he killed pecpie on his own and
not at a ceremony he was requived to bring bac' romething [rom the
dead person such as some identification, clothing, jewelerv, etc.
1{ there was not a meetiny of the cult in the near future, he wus
told to put these items beside a particular garbars2 can., light post,
erc. -and in a plastic bag or paper bag so that a wmember of the cult
could verify his kill. TOOLE again stated that he "reckoned that
chev kept pretty good track of their people” and would kKnow wherc
and when to pick up the dead person’'s belongings. TOOLE related
that he did not always comply since he scmetimes sold the belongings.
of this victims and on several occasions at a cult meecing he was
asked by other members why he had been selling his victim's belonging .
as if they were watching him and knew what he had been doing.

TOOLE stated that he did not know the names ci anv of the
individuals in the group since they did not use names other than BILL.
described above. ' ' ‘ -

TOOLE added that after he killed his wvicrims he was required
to have sex with the dead person as part of the ritual and on occasio:
he killed his victims. while he was having sex with them, both men anc
women. TOOLE stated ‘that he usually chopped the victims up afterwar:
as part of his witchcraft and devil worship routine since that would
give him more of the devils's spirit. In addicion, TOOLE related tha-
he usually drank the blood of his victims. TOOLE added that he some-
times killed animals but when he killed people on his own he was not
required to kill animals either before or afterward as part of the
ritual.

TOOLE stated that he killed people in a large number of
the states of the union and in different ways so that law enforcement
officials could not catch on to what was going on. TOOLE added that
he burned several of his victims after killing them since '"fires
excite him". TOOLE added that he had been set-ing fires since he was

006039



N OAID-

OTTIS ELWOOL TOULE . SRR 11 S 0
five or six vears old and hias cozritved arson 1. over the Imniceld
States, '

TOOLE stated thai he Liticd ADAST VALY “he oo uing bovw Trow
Hollvwood, Florida whose head was found In a v il there.  1TO0LE sotc

T

that after cutting off the bov's head, he purt the body in the trunk
of his car and drove all the war to Jac ksonvilie. Florida where he
cremated the body. TOOLE stated that officers were unable to Tind
any blood in his car since he SLlLUhEG it down wverr well after the
Pllllng TOOLE stated that no one ever asked hir to kldnap any
children for them and ADAM WALSH was the youngust he ever kidnuaped
and killed. TOOLE stated that whencver he kidnaped anycne it w{‘ on
his own and he never kidnaped anvone to turn thewn over To someone
else as he always killed his victims.

TOOLE added that he was not required tu prove everyv killing
to someone in the cult and he has no way ol knowing how to contack
any members of the cult. TOOLE stated that he alwavs wondered why
thev could locate him and send him a postcard wherever he was livinz.
TOOLE stated that he usually lefr forwarding addresses.

At first, TOOLE stated that he has not had any conversation
with HENRY LEE LUCAS since they were both jailed regarding the cult
except for: one telephone conversation when TOQLE told LUCAS “hands.
cross, fire', and LUCAS replied ''that's right'. Somewhat later,
TOQLE stated that he could have talked about the cult to LUCAS
since they were jailed but he does not recall =nv specifics.
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HENRY LEE LUCAS, Inmate, Williamson County Jail,
Georgetown, Texas, was advised of the identity of the Iin-ervieving
agent as well as his Constitutional Rights as set forth ¢- the
Inrerrvogation: Advice of Rights tfeorm. LUCAS indicated zhat he
understood the purpose ol the inferview as well as his rigats
and that he would be willing tn answer questions without hi s
arcorney present:

LUCAS advised that he first became acquainted with the
Satanic cult group known as "Hands of Death' in 1978 while he was
traveling from Maryland enroute to California with his brother-in-law.
WADE KAISER. LUCAS stated that they were in Maryland waiting to
cross a bridge which was closed down. The traffic was stopped and
a car pulled along side LUCAS' car. The driver of the other vehicle
began talking to KATSER and LUCAS and during the conversation LUCAS
mentioned that he needed work. The other driver said that he wanted
to talk more with LUCAS and would stop at a roadside park on the
other side of the bridge once traffic started moving again.

LUCAS stated that after the other driver stopped he and

KAISER pulled into the roadside park and the other man, who identified

himself as DON METRIC, said that he had work for LUCAS and asked LUCAS
to accompany him to Shreveport, Louisiana. LUCAS agreed and left his
brother-in-law and drove to ShreVPport with METRIC in !ETRIC's car.
Once they arrived in Shreveport, METRIC told LUCAS that the JOb he
had for him was to run stolen cars. LUCAS told METRIC that he could
not do so since he was involved in killing people and covld not affor.
to be picked up by the police in a stolen car.

METRIC told LUCAS that the fact that LUCAS was involved in
killing people was Just fine since he was a member of an organization
that LUCAS could join which was known as the ""Hands of Death". METRIC

. explained to LUCAS that the organlzatlon was involved in rituals whic:
were supposed to 'reincarnate” the devil.. These rituals involved
killing people in different ways including crucifixions. LUCAS
stated that he told METRIC he could not join at that time since he
had to return to Maryland to straighten out a few things but would
return and speak to METRIC about it at a later date. METRIC told
LUCAS to go to Miami, Florida instead as that was where METRIC

would be. METRIC described for LUCAS a warehouse where he normally
could be found during the day and told LUCAS to contact him there.
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LUCAS recalled that the wnrehouse was in the warehouse
district of Miami and could be found bv Zcllewing the road which
roes to the pler area of Miami. Ac.a point ~hose this rvoad crnsses
a heach, the warehouse could be found b fclloving the beach south
to the third warehcouse on the right-hand sie. IUCAS stated that
there are two roads going to the pier area in :iami, rae going to
an island and the other n~t going to an island. LUCAL stated that
the road which does not go to an island is the road that crosses
the beach desscribed above. LUCAS described the warehouse as an
old one which stores different types of equipment to be shipped
over seas. LUCAS said that some stolen merchandise is also bandled
through the warehouse by METRIC. LUCAS added that he believes that
the road going to the pier area that he cdescribed above is the first
road that crosses the Everglades once vou srrive in Miami but that
it should be followed east towards the ocean.

LUCAS advised that he returned to Marviand and remained
there for the rest of 1978. le had an argument with his sister
sometime in February of 1979 and he departed Maryland in his sister's
pick-up and drove to Florida. He contacted OTTIS TOOLE in Jacksonvilic
Florida and took him to Miami where thev met METRIC in his warehouse.
METRIC talked to both TOOLE and LUCAS about joining the "Hands of
Death' and told them that they would have to go intn the Everglades
to be trained. o

LUCAS stated that METRIC took them to a campsite inside the
Everglades which could be reached by traveling to the first road
crossing the Everglades north of Miami which iz a turnpike or some
similar rcad. Go another two miles north of this road on the north/
south turnpike and there is a pier area off the side of the road.

LUCAS stated that when they arrived at the pier area they were loaded
into an airboat and taken for approximatelv a one half hour ride to
an island inside the Everglades. LUCAS scated that the campsite therec
was camouflaged in that the buildings were bhuilt out of old trees whi-rt
blended with the scenery. When he arrived. LUCAS observed approximatel-
100 people in the campsite taking different types of training., During
the six weeks TOOLE and LUCAS spent at the campsite, many people came
and went and during the period LUCAS estimated that there were probably
1000 people in and out of the campsite. LUCAS stated that some were
being ftrained, some were getting differeat kinds of equipment and

some were “‘reporting" on murders they had committed.

LUCAS stated that when he first arrived at the campsite he

was tested as are all new members of the organization. The test consist.

of.having to kill someone who is stripped naked in front of the person
being tested. The person being tested is rold how they should kill
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the victim. LUCAS stated that he was asked to kill a white male ‘
approximately twenty years old who had been a member of the orga71zaf}or
~and apparently had siot Jone as be was told. LUCAS was told to ¥ill bl
bv shooting him and then cutting up his body on a sort of alter which
w-as there. The altar ccoasisted of a flat rock in the shape o7 :

table top supported by rock pillars. LUCAS stated that he killed the
man and cur him up after which some of the man's body parts were taken
and eaten by people whe were there. LUCAS added that TOOLE ate some

of the body parts and assisted LUCAS in killing the marn and cufting
him up. LUCAS refused to eat any of the hody parts and never has
indulged in that kind of activity. LUCAS advised that he did not

think that TOOLE had ever had any knowledge of this organization

prior to their going to the campsite in 1979; however, TOQLE recently

" tald LUCAS that he knew ali about the cult long before LUCAS did but
never told LUCAS before now. '

TUCAS advised that the training they were given consisted o'
classes on the types of evidence police look for in murders and how t.
avoid leaving evidence such as fingerprints. TUCAS added that they
were told that if they ever shot someone they would have to have the
gun rebored so that no one could tell that it was the murder weapor.
They were also told how to enter homes to murder but make the break-in
look like it was a common burglary. They were also instructed as to
how bodies should be transported without being noticed and how to
communicate with other members without detectien. When asked bow
this was done, LUCAS only replied that he was instructed to memorize
the faces of the other memhers so that they would recognize oreanother
when they met in different parts of the country. LUCAS added that
when he met another member he would engage the member in a discussion
about certain aspects of -the cult as well as the places of previous
meetings in order to see if the other member really knew the
organization and was a member in fact. LUCAS stated that after the
training period he and TOOLE were told to commit two killings per
week and to kill animals along with the victims. They were also
told to mutilate the human bodies and if they could not then they
- were to mutilate the animal body so as te transfer the human spirit
into the animal and thereafter into the devil. LUCAS estimated that
he has killed just as many animals as humans. '

LUCAS stated that he and TOOLE returned to the Everglades
campsite every month for about four months following their initial
training and each time they were picked up at the roadside pier descrih-
above and taken in an airboat to the campsite then returned after they
reported where their victims were hidden and how they had been killed
and mutilated. After about four mgnths, METRIC told them that they had
done such a good job that they only had to return once a year. METRIC

006043




-

et

1a 83

setaLaton of intersew S

Yl

SA 02D-

HENRY LEE LUCAS S/LL;84 _ . Fage -4 -
added that if they ever picked up any merchandise they wanted to gct
rid of, they should take it to his warehouse in iami and Ehe moneY

nhtained from the sale of rhe merchandise would o to the "Hands of

Death' organization.

LUCAS stated that members can alsc receginlize one another
b7 a tattoo that thev sbould have on their right hand in rhe web
hetween the thumb and forefinger. LICAS stnated that tattoo is of
s cross. flames and hands. LUCAS added that some members have the
tattoo of a snake and others the tattoo of a scorpion. He said that
the individuals with tattoos of the hands, cross and flames were
people who "go on the road to kill, committing burglaries, robberies,
etc.". The people who have the tattoo of a snake are kidnapers and
the people with the tattoo of a scorpion are rirunl killers who xill
for the cermonies the cult engages in. LUCAS displayed his tattoo
and said that it was nearly worn off. By observation it was determinew
that there is no tattoo in the web of his right hand between rhe thumhb
and forefinger but there are some very faint dar: lines whose shape
could not be discerned.

LUCAS advised that he was given specific assignments by
METRIC on behalf of the cult on ocrasion. Once TOOLE called LUCAS
from San Antonio, Texas and asked LUCAS to travel from Maryland to
San Antonio since he had an assignment to kill two millionaires in
Bastrop, Texas. LUCAS traveled to San Antonio and met TOOLE and they
traveled to the home of the two millionaires. LUCAS said that he wait.
outside while TOOLE killed the man and his wife after which they loade:.
their bodies in a van and LI’CAS and TOOLE drove to Reno, itlevada where
they dumped the bodies in the desert nearby. LUCAS advised that an
unknown lady in Houston, Texas had hired the '"Hands of Death” to commi:
the killings and the assigrment had been given to TOOLE. LUCAS said
that he -and TOOLE got $5,000 each for the murder. LUCAS used his $5,0
to purchase a travel trailer.

LUCAS advised that he has attended meetings of the culr
irregularly and the last meeting he attended was in 1981 in the
Everglades. Some of the meetings were held on a deserted beach

-~ just south of Fort Lauderdale, Florida. These meetings are held once

a year during June or July and sometimes 75-100 pecple would attend

although they usually broke up into smaller groups of 20 or sc so as ~c

teo attract attention. The parties usually consist of worship services
where they pray to the devil, and dances, sex and narcotics. LUCAS
recailed that once they were checked out by the local police but since
they were doing nothing wrong the police left them alone. LUCAS said
that there were no murders committed on the beach during these parties

since they could not hide the bodies that well. He said that =he murde:
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were usually committed in the Everglades where they could easily
dump the bodies.

LUCAS added that he has atrended meetings outside of Flori.:
i~ Imdiina (rwice) at a campsite near 2 river. LUCAS stated that thi
campsitc could be located by traveling east of Tndianapolis on a
highway (possibly Highway #41) about twelve to fourteen miles to a ri .
Once arriving at the river, one sould travel scuth of the bridge alom:
the riverbank a short distance and the campsite could be located ther-.

LUCAS also stated that he received an assignment once from
METRIC to kill President CARTER. This assignment was given in 1979
and LUCAS followed CARTER to several different locatioms in Washingto
D.C. and once to Palm Springs, California but did not kill CARTER
although he had several opportunities to shoot him. LUCAS understood
that he was given the assignment because of various laws that were be‘.
passed that the "Hands of Death’” organization did not want passed.

LUCAS also said that the death squads in El Salvador are be!:
set up by the "Hands of Death' organization out of Miami. When asked
how he knew this, LUCAS replied that he knows because they are being
set up out of Miami and guns are being sent to the death squads from
Miami. LUCAS said that the death squads have been in existence long
before the United States was aware of it and that he once was even asr

to go to El Salvador to join the squads and kill people. LUCAS .said -:.
he refused but did take assignments to go to Spain and Canada where he

committed some killings.

LUCAS said that he killed a high ranking civilian in Spain
in May of 1979 after having been given the assignment by the cult,
METRTC only told him to kill but gave him no reason and LUCAS travelec
to Spain and shot the man. Two months before that, LUCAS s=aid that h=z
and TOOLE traveled to Spain and killed an entire family as this was
TOOLE's assignment from the cult. LUCAS said that he and TOOLE trave'l:
to Spair on a boat and got rheir passports in Jacksonville, Florida.
Later, in 1980 or 1981, he traveled to Canada and killed six fo eighr
people including some businessmen as an assignment from the cult.

LUCAS added thatv he has also been involved in a lot of
kidnapings in which he has kidnaped people "to order™. LUCAS explainer

that he was told by METRIC to kidnap a person of a specific age, heign:.

weight, hair color and take them through El Paso to a location outside
of Monterey, Mexico. LUCAS said that children were sometimes kidnaped
and taken to Mexico for adoption purposes and older women were kidnaped
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and taken to Mexico for prosritution purposes. LUCAS said that METRIT
normally gives him his assignments and be last saw METRIC in 1981 in
Miami. LUCAS said that METRIC used to live in Shreveport, Louisiane
Lot he has since disappeared from the area., LUCAS explained tha!: ne
wir cccently taken by the Shreveport Police Depariment around Shrovera:

and he pointed out the house where METRIC had lived but they determirc .

that METRIC had left the area.

LUCAS stated that the following indviduals are also memher:
of the "Hands of Death': :

JACK SMART

Hemet, California

Race White

Sex Male

Height So6'2"

Weight 170-180

Age Late 40s

Miscellaneous Sells antique furnituvre and

is married to OBEARA SMART

LUCAS stated that SMART asked LUCAS in late 1979 to
transport marijuana for the organization and LUCAS did so. Later
on, he also transported "Angel dust” and cocaine. LUCAS advised
that SMART has assisted him in killings in Los Angeles and Palm
Springs, California as well as in the desert near Palm Springs on
an Indian reservation near Beaumont, California. LUCAS has provided
all of this information to California authorities but thev have been
unatle to find any bodies. LUCAS advised that JACK's brother, TONY
SMART, is alo a member.

- TONY SMART
San Jacinto, California
Race White
Sex Male .
Occupation Retired - following an injury

he sustained after a fall while
working as a sand blaster

TONY SMART has accompanied JACK SMART and LUCAS on several
killings in California as well. LUCAS stated that TONY SMART's
residence can be located by traveling on Interstate 10 to the
Hemet Exit and follow the road towards Hemet until you arrive at a
blinking light. From there go left to a stop sign and take a right
until you come to a four way stop. At the four way stop ge straight
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through and the first trailer park on the right-hand side of the road
is the one where SMART has his trailer. The trailer park is run by
SMART's father and SMART's trailer is the third trailer on the right-
hand side -as you go in the first entrance. LUCAS described SHMART':
trailer as being gold and vellow in color. LUCAS was last there on
September 30, 1982,

LUCAS stated that one could arrive at JACK SMART's
residence by taking the same directions as above except that after
going through the four way stop, continue straight te a stop light
and turn lefr towards Hemet. Take the main street to North Hemet
until you come to Hemet Street. Turn right and travel down Hemet
Street until you pass the school and pass a crossroad after going
up a hill. SMART's house is the third house on the left and it ha=
a2 steel chain link fence without buildings behind. The hcuse is a
one story white residence with an attic where JACK SMART usually
hides stolen merchandise. According to LUCAS. JACK SMART also has
dug out secret places under the out buildings where he also hides
stolen merchadise. SMART is married but LUCAS does not know whether
his wife is aware that he has participated in killings. SMART owns
a 1943 browvn Dodge ambulance.

BILL and DEBBIE SMITH
‘Poplar Bluff, Missouri

LUCAS stated that he met them in California in 1981 and
traveled with them for a time. LUCAS was able to get BILL SMITH to
kill some people on the road. LUCAS stated that BILL has a tattoo
of a scorpion on his right arm above his wrist. LUCAS believes
that the Poplar Bluff Police Department traced BILL and DEBBIE SMITH
but ‘they did not confess to being members of the cult.

RAY DILLON :

Suburbs near Washington, D.C.

Race White

Sex : Male

Height 6'

Weight _ 190-200

- Age Late 40s

Hair Blondish gray

LUCAS last saw DILLON five years ago and stated that he has

no job but merely roams around the country. According to LUCAS,
DILLON's wife works for some government organization. LUCAS stated
that he has seen DILLON at some of the "Hands of Death" meetings.
LUCAS described DILLON as being some kind of an overseer in the
organization. .
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LUCAS was unable to provide any further information
regarding the "Hands of Death'” cnlt.
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ling was a ‘habit’ for Toole
Convicted murderer again claims to have h\am:_m&ai | :\&.&,__

e Valente : "Ihe killing started when he was 14, he said.
, Nriter

Deborah Sue Willismson's family  lie killed people I dida think was worlh s \ ;
4. Flonda Publishing Co. thought a tormer boytriend had Killed her living unyhow.* . ! got in my mind I'm
; until Henry Lee Lucas became a suspect, ._._,..__w..,_ kind of make me mad or piss me going to kidnap the kid

AT ago he was just another name on a Story, Page 8.1, off, and I'd kill them,” he said, P
b court docket, . .l...eE._n ._E.ﬂ"__. men and women, Toole H.:_ [Adam Walsh]. Get him in

“Hime then was arson. ’ & killed them “gve) way palson . "
+ L 15 murder Lots of murders, “You cun close the door,” Tooke lold the _.L..... ite plok.” & . my car and ..30.0 him for
- Fiwood Toole enptains it this way:  young juiler “She Ithe reporter) dossn't have  jta han iven stalements n connection with myself."

"o thunksng of 1l {lulling) Like Lo be atraud of me " 3 Killings, been charged with nine and is ex-

“elie ke another ¢vervday habit” He mal i the Uny visitor's cubicle, wiaring pecied to be implicated in Many more, — Ottls Elwood ._.007 ! c.,.q

“ s e latest srrival on Death Row. slacks and a dirty yellow T-shin displaying u Many of his sistemenis have resolved o

ihar. he was sentenced to (he electric piclure of Rocky Mountain snowpeaks, lle cages that perplexed invesiigatory for years,
' The 1982 arson murder of & 84-year- koked disheveled, with scrubby beard anda e mytement Lhat gave Alin status as o death, although he has given police explicit
-~ 1ing house resident. pol beily. He had walked In with & lanky strut, _.“ L

2 finbonal vilain was (o of &year-oid  descriptions of the slaying that lead them to -
't 1ol the end for the 37-yearold Ina qQuiel, casual voice and with g frequenl  Adam Walsh, who wab taken a Holly- .

moille native, . &in, Tovle Lulked of his life wilh serial mur- wood, Fla, l.-eiﬂ mall Adam's head war  ment about Pﬁ.—.._-.- E___Euﬁ.
~ehl before he was sentenced, Toole derer MNenry Lee Lucas, his fascination with later —o.sm in & canal near Vero Beach The But in the Interview, Toole agein jakd he 39
»mtewed by The Florida Times-Union fire, his “habu” of killing, his thoughts on fe hoy's body hax never been found, ]

vl County Sail, after deaih Toole has nol been charged with the boy's (See TOOLE, Page A-B) ,
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Number of cases

Roger Malone
o |

tienry Lae Lucas — a glass-eyed drifter whose claims
of murder ﬁoﬁh«o .._...ne...._.-ﬂ..in_____-o:o: — has amassed &
staggering ction his bid qs one
of history's most brutal Aad prolific )

Throughout the nation at least 3 indictments o war-
ranls chierging murder have been {lled agalnst the 47-
yeur-old Lucas, who hived in Jacksonville during the late
"M und early 'H0s.

e has been convicled of four murders, includirig the
denths of his mother and & Jacksonville leenager he
called his cominon-law wife, and he is suspected in scores
of other slayings. o o

By his count -— whuch has increased sleadlly since his
1983 arrest — he has killed as many as 30 pecple. Kasti-
males by lawmen range between 100 and 200 dealhs:.

Alone or with Jacksonville native Ottis Elwood Taole,
Latas claims L0 have killed, rapad. robbed, burglaiized,
beat, toriured, kidnapped, bound and gagged victima
ucross the country,

In Jacksonville, he's thought 10 have killed sight wom: |

en, bul prossculors have yet 10 bring the cases befors ihe
grand jury. They say they're waiting for Lests Lo be com-
pleted by {he Florida Department of Law Enforcemimt's
‘'mme Laboralory. .

“I've Tun out of dirty words lo describe these two —
pecrophilia, cannibatlym, homosexuality,” said a Texas
preseculor, Don Richard. " Everyone wania Lo make jure
ihat they never get out of jail”

In the past year, Lucas has been convicied of Lhree
murders and sentenced to death, e imprsonment and 7%
vears In prison :

It 1980 het received a 20- Lo 40-year senlence (or Killing
nis molher in Michigan. He was released afler five yirars
i mental huspilal und five years 1n & prison.

Richard's cuse in Bag Spnng, Texas, involves a 88-yvar-
old man whu way picked up al & Greyhound bus siation
and Uenlen Lo death with u Lire Lool. No charges have teen
il i Lhaat Case,

“This 150’ une of the betler deaths,” Richard said, re-
ternwg W charges of more ly, more brutal murilers
Lhal have been flled agninst Lucas

sgt Kenneth Lee of the Fort Bend Counly (Texus)
Shenifl's Office, added, “T'o him there 15 no difference be-
1ween good snd bud When he killa somebody, he hati nio
Jeelings

Aere e et wnonm ol people m thiy world

Lucas astounds

ton duri

. . — Franh Smith/$tefi
Ottis Toole (above) conférred with attorney At Washing-
the edrly portion of his recenit irial. Toole re-
ceived a death sentence after the jury found him guilty
of murdar. Last January, Henry Lee Lucas {right) was
ascorted to the Willlamson County Courthouse in Tex-
as. He has confessad to more than 300 slayings.

Lucas has been charged.

® Awg. 35, 1975 — Deborah Sue Willlamson, 18, was
found &t her Lubbock, Texas, heme with 17 slab wounds
~ three days after Lucas was reléased from a Michigan
prison afler serving four years for attempled kidna;
of a young girl. He has be¢n charged

e Dec. 12, 1075 — James F. Carpellotid, 40, of Ellicolt
City, Md., was strungled in & mnotel room juit wesl of Bal-
{imere during an apparent Tobbery.

o April ¥, 1978 — Elzabath Price, 4, was found in the
Lubbock, Texas, airport parking Ucket booth where she
worked. She wis partially clad and had 20 stab wounds in
her chest. Lucas was chirged yadtenday,

@ Dec. 36, 19796 ~ A 15-year-old girl wag found stnbhed

City, La, :

_Nezao estimate (hat ghe was sirangled aboul s week
earlier. Before belng ldlled, she was bound, raped, tor-
tured and stabbed, LL. Lamiar Breediove with \he Bossier
Parish Sheri{f's Offlce said. .

® Feb. 5, ¥18 — A woman belween the ages df 25 and
25 was lound burned beyond recognition it a Dade County
trawti dump. o

® Oct. 31, 1M — An unidentified woman was sirangled
and her body dumped near Georgelown, Texus Lucas
was senlenced Lo death uﬂ lethal injection afer being con-
victed of the murder arlier this year.

Williamson County, Texas, Sheritf Jim Boulw el said,
“Wo foel et ot wirs P, Thise twn were o A
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authorities

_ milled picking up the woman near Dallas as

were driving east from Oklahoma. The bev'
that Toole did not participate in the fullng

» March 3, 1981 — Beverly Joyce Lutrel. &
dead In her mobile home near Odassa, Te:
been raped, siabbed and stranglied with a tele,

Detective James l.ong with the Odessa 1"
menl sald there was no sign of robbery or 1.

I {hink e system worka, but these Lhing-
happen,” Long sald. "I\ is regrettable thal il
one like __.E.m Lucas to clear & murder like

Long sald Lucas’ mobility helped him e«
that Luces was oul of the state within (hree
the murder.

& March 4, 191 — Dlon Marie Wilkinson
N from Houston and found itabbed Lo !
& tréstle In Fort Bend County, Texa-
boen charged

Sg1 Les with the county sherif's office sl
computers Lo help track down serial illers.

“rhat's aboul ihe only answer, because |
you'rs going to siop the killing,” he said T
ing o kill regardleas of whal we do. It's alu.
Ing.

. "{Also), the courls need to be held accoun!
people Lhey let out, When you 1ook at Mr, Lu.
out of thit criminal jusiice system before. | o
the sentence, T just present the case."

& April 4, 1§61 — Kalthy Whorton, a studs
trop, La., was kilied in Monroe, 1a.

o April 14, 1381 — Shirley Ogden, & 34-yeat .
was siubbed te death in an alley along Nort:
in Jucksonville. : -

" No charges have been filed.

» May m-r_l_ = Two women, Lynda K.
Hazel Haack, 19, were found strangled aml .
drainage diteh in soulhwest Miami. )

® Aug. 3, 1982 — Catheryan Powell, 35, «
shol in the head in her home near Tyler. 1.

Assigtant Smith County, Texas, District A
ard Moore said Lucas and Toole asked the w
ter for an overheated ruciator. Once inside b
altacked har, beating her with a coffee j
and eventually shooling her in the head will .
said.

® Aug, W, 1982 — Freida L, "Becky"” Powrl:

sonvilie wag ptabbed to death und dismembe -

fognly Tevas 1w s spRbeicnd o
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1 spent three-and-a-hall, four hours tatking to him,”
f.ee sakl. "1 was realy amazed at the delail he could jto
e, 1 fell ceally rebeved that he was in ...E_.S.« s dill
hard 10 bebeve that there ure pecple like Lhal!

In June 1943, Lucss was arrested in Monlague County,
‘Texas, aml jailed on & weupons n__....a..

Three daya later he Lold a juller, “I've done some bid
things ™ Soon he began drawing pictures of the “bid
vhings” he had done, skelches of dead women — some-
umes jusl o fuce; sonelimes a body Iying m 8 shallow
Rriave.

Like shurks on u feeding frenzy, law officers from
throughout ‘Texas, then [Lovisiana, Lthen the res! of uw
country came 1o Montague County Lo Lalk lo Lucas ubowut
their unsolved murders. *

. Thbe usi of crimas in which Lucas has been churged, hits
been convicied, or is considered a suspect although o
charges have been (led includes:

. ._-!E.« 1988 — Lucas’ mother, Viola, was stabbed 1o
death in Michigan. Lucss was convictad of the murder
and relessed w1970 after serving flve yvars in prison ancl
five years of lreatment in s mental hospital.

@ Ang. 9, 1078 — Linda Phillips, 17, of Kaulman Counly,
Texas, was molesied, then sta repealedly. Her Eﬂ.
wuat jound in a wooded area off a county road,

Bill Baker, a distric! attormey's invesligator, said thal
Lke many of Lhe other cases against Lucan there was no
suspect in Ms. Phillips’ murder unti) Lucas began Wlking.

“We ran down every lead we posgibly had for & number
. of years,” Baker siul. “He gave us deinils Lhat never ware
common knowledge.” :

# Fep. L, 1071 — Naomi Miller Martin, 54, clad in paja.
mas and a housecoal, was found dead on her living room
couch in Lubbock, Texas, She had been stabbed 28 limes.

Toole describes how he developed arson,

iy, Yiean, was snofTWice by the Head ERRERESNFVaR
tound dumpell near a roud in Marshall, Ihe counly sal.

® June 3, = Sgt. Louls Wagner, 34, of the 81, Tam-
many Parigh, La, shariff's depariment, waa shot demd on
his way home from worii Another man confessed and
waa convicted of the killing but Jater recanted Lucas und
Tools have been char, ’ .

® July 4 1978 — th Taylor, 33, was rapsd snd
Mabbed to death at her Little Rock, Ark., apartmant dur:

:.J [ !._.m._..._..
Jtoyd Ring, division chief for the prosecutor's office,
shid & sirict ethics code prevens um frem talking aboul
the specilic case, bul sald the incresse in serial murders,
in genersl, L ularming,

Serial murderers kill Esakn_ss__. over a period of
time. Police and prosecutors distingulsh them [rom rhase

murdererd, who Kili many victims at once.

* *It'w scary,"” Kisg said. “They have the abllity 1o strike
#i Eandom with virlually no evidance lefl bahind, These
jme:ggsv-%_-nasnﬁszn.gﬁu

i
”._.n_:.o.._ & motive, he said, (here's nothing to point to Lhe

T.

® Nev. 1, 1970 — A 19-yoar-old woman, Lisa Martinl, was
siabbied in her Kennewick, Wash., spartment.

Caph. L.L. Abernathy with the Kénsewick Police De-
“..-_.5!: said revelaiions hrought by the cases againmt

ucas and Toole have sparked changés in police pric-
Licas,

“Lisw enlorcement agencies E..o_.ﬁ_. L the nation are
Leking wtéps to combat seria) killers, but (1's very difficult
if the parson has no ties lo Uik communily and he's in and
ol (n the same day,” Abernathy sald. "It's frustrating.”

& Nev, 2, 1978 — Police found the decomposed body of

Doltie Deman, 44, lying beside Tailroad tracks in Bossler -

mbgr e ki iy Sead AR UYL \DEIN he Hilie

Ms. Knolts, bul no charges have been lited in this or other
local chius. e

® Dec. 18, I¥19 — The skelelal remiiis of Debwa Lyna
O'Quinn, I¥, of Bariws Rowd were found in n womded area
oft Mount Pleasanl Read in Jacksonville \Wficials vstl-
mate thal she wisy stabbud to desth sevén tonlhs eacher.

No charges have been lied in this case.

# Jan. 5. 1986 — Jarme 1. Colling, 78, wis beatan und
stabbed 1o death i her Sun Juah Avenu el

Agwin, no charges have been Died

& April 77, 1988 - 45-yeur-old Jo Cole &
#n and stomped 1o death. fTer budy wos
care center on West Union Streel.

No churges have bean fibéd,

® June il, 198 — Bétty Kuy Choate, 41, was shot amd
Kkilled during a robbery Gt a savings and loan uesociation
in Mont Belview, Tekas. .

@ July 12, 158 — The granddaughter of Neplune Beach
Police Chiel Howard Basit, 24-year-old Hegina Azell
Campbell, wis sirangled and her body found under & car
nexi to the chiel's house, whire she was slaving a1 the

No charges have been fled.

& July 3, 1589 — The nude body of Tamins Keel Con-
nars, 19, of Atlantic Beach was found in & ravine at Kath-
ryn Abbey Hanna Pari She had been strangled

No charges hive been . .

® Dec. 13, 1980 — Brendd Eluine Harden, 28, of Misd
Mufiet Lane was stabbed death i her home.

No charges have been filed. -

& January 1981 — An unidentified wofan, absut 20
yoars old, wis glabbed to denth. Six weeks later, her body
was mund in & wooded area off a staie highway In Bossier
Parish, La.

Bresdjove with the parish sheritf's office suwd lLucas ad-

s bl
Henr i duy
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sapoed 10 dedth and her body buttied, one |
tims, in & wood-burning stove. .

“Montugue County Sheriff W.F, Conway sad | -
did hundyman work for Mrs Rich, was <i|
harmitng the 80-year-old woman alnce Mre i
pearance Sepl. 16, 1982

Repaated questioung lailed to uncover tvuli
Lucas 10 the woman'y disuppearance, wiil on Jun
the sheriif arrested Lucas on & weapons ¢hail

Whilé I jail on that charge, Lucas began
vonfesuions, at first cluping only 100 killings, '
inling the number a5 high as 360.

lucus pteuded guilty to murder n Mrs -
und wui sentenced 10 75 years in prison.

® Oct, 2, 1882; March 17, 1383 and Ap#il 13, 1®
bodies of thrée woman were found in- woodu!

Montgo! County, Texas. The times and pla
deaths not be detirmined.

Lawmien across the country say thare's no »..
tact yourself or loved ones froin beiag a victim »
Henry Lucas or Ottls Toole. No way, that is, st
\r¢me paranoia.

1 don't Think therg's any way that that you
ognize & person like Lucas” sald Long of Odes
“He'y a very quiel person, very polite, well-n.ur
would be the last person in the world you woul .
of killing someone.” . .

Sherilf Boutwell of Willinmson County. Tes.:
“The enly thing people can do is use ynore caw -
_.,E_ need 10 look mskance al anybody thes il

hat's agd.”

And Baker, the Kaufman County investigalu!
“Ii's a ietrible thing You can't tell them by )
them,

“I{ you were Lhat apprehensive . . well suu:
the deep end 1 you think about il Lo0 much”

1g ‘habits

_r.f,

(From Page A1) “He fell down in Lhe sest. 1 didn't . — e in Jacksonville and was santenced to kiling ..\s.._,o.o._.m%___
think nothing of i, I thought he was [ 20 vears in prison. . lenry & including -
killed Adsm. alive " ._.OO_lm OI_MOZO_lom< He speaks of fire (n spiritual lerms,  Kether.”

Situng back, chain-smoking ciga-
retles, he coyly prompied a discus-
sion of Adum's killing.

“1 didn’t have a patiern {of killing],"
he gald. [ even cut iheir heads off,
you know."

“Did you kill Adam Walsh?"

He psused for a moment, a grin
fixed on his {ace as If he had heen
wailing for Lhe question.

“Well, 've given them [authorities)

Whan Adam remained silent during
the Ru_kﬁulﬁh:ﬁ. Tovle -“_.
he realiz waa wrong. He
decided ?.u-_.._. _.n-u dei d and resolved
10 AUSpose .

Toole recalled H.___Q.-s ofl the high-
way onto i “jorked” roud and remov-
ing the child's body sid & machete
from the car.

“1 put both my hands on It [the ma-
chele]. und T chopped his head _.a.__..._

Ollls Elwood Tocle has bun ©f 8asteop, La., wat abducted from &
charged In the following cases:
& Nev, 6, 1978 — Kavin Key, 19,0

wara found the nant day, his nesr
nSi-.os_.._-_a fuers near Waco. Yool -
" ll h L) e

college Campus snd shol twice. Her
body was discarded about five miles
sway on & rursl road.

Austin, Texss, wis retuming froma o Aug. 3, 1981 — Sylvis Quayta, 34,
movie it Austin with 1;:.._”_“ Nk o n.w.ﬁ. Hifts Villdge, Q_um:.. shot, | that for me.”
Inxar of Georgetown, Fenss. oni Nov 8. spabned and raped in her homs. Tool
Thair car ran oul of gasoline and .J 1okl police he pickad a housa al random
tly wara offered o ride sﬁs_ " and Climbed through the bithroom win. | troubles. he said. :
ir bodies, both riddied with bullts, dow. He saw her lying in bed and shol |

heé orice in (he head. He smid he then
dravaed hor s IhR Iiving ronin sexusly

el -

*1t's about like a high. Like peaple
20 to church. They raige hell all week
and on Sunday they go to church. It
kind of Lfts them up. So 's realy
whal you call a high, Fires kind of do

His mother realized her son had
“she tred 1o put me in 8 menlal in-

slitulion one fime, but she wasn't ahle
CCe 1 o B e sid

“We slarted talk
once, and | said [ th
about 50 or 80, and 1
i's more than Lthal’

‘Toble said he and |
ple aller breaking i -
plcking them up Ab

“We hilled 2 lot vl
people we picked ap
e side of 1he ronl

Nanp ey e e



o Aug. 9, 1979 — [inda Phills
Tenas, wus molested, (hen stabbed repealedly. Her
wild jound in & wooded area ofl & county road.

YN S TR LY PP

ke many of Lhe other cases against Lucas thare wag no
suspect in Ms Phillips' munder untll Lucas began talking,  tC#s.

“We ran down every lead we possibly had for a number
of years," Baker said. “He gave us detaily thai never were
common know ledge.”

® Feb. 1, 1971 — Naomi Miller Martin,
mas and a housecosl, was found dead on her living reom
couch m |.ubbock, Texas. She had been stabbed 25 limes,

Toole describes how he developed arson, killing ‘habits’

(From Page A-1)

kalled Adam. lga

Sitling- back, chain-smoking -
rettes, he coyly prompled a discus
sion of Adam's killing

“I dbdn’t have & pattern [of killing},"
he sald 1 even cul their heads off,
yuu know.”

"Did you kill Adam Walsh?™

He paused for a moment, a grin
fixed on his face as if he had been
waiing for the question

"Well, I've given them [authorities}
uboul five stalements The last state-
ment | fold them was really the
truth,” Toole conlends.

The “truth" included a missing Unk,
an explaration of what happened Lo
Adam’s body.

Toole delved into his narralive like
i well-rehearsed sioryteller,

"I was silting in front of the Sears
store, and he |Adam) was running
around outside. I saw he had a base-
ball hat on, and I asked him if he
liked baseball

I saud, ‘I like basebail myself, and
1 like to go {ishing and hunting and all
that"

“Toole saud he lured the boy Lo his
car, a black-unad-white 1971 Cadillac,
with promises of candy and ioys,

“I got in my mind I'm going o kid-
nup the lnd. Gel lvm In my car and
keep lum lor myself”
© After he gol Adem into he car,
Toole saud, he told him the presents
were ul hus houve, and the boy agreed
¢ ride with him 1o get then

Tuole said he hewded for Jackuon-
ville on Ihe Florida Turnpike, where
he hud sant in un earlier statement he
had buried (he boy's body. Invesiiga.
lors searched along the Tunpike bul
found nothwng. :

“He [Adam] samd, 'l want lo go
back. I wanl you 1o take me back,’ "
Toole recalled.

"1 backhanded lum,” Toole said. "I
hil lam in the face.”

When Adam continued Lo cry,
Toole said he over (o the
of the road punched Adam tn the
slomach Lo shul him up.

v Luapilal,

ps, 27, of Kaulman County,
body

“He fell down in (he seal. T didn'l
:n:..: nothing of {t. I' thought he was
alive.”

When Adam cemaisi ad silert d
Lhe next hour of the diive, Tools s
he realized something was wrong. He
decided Adam was dead and resolved
1o duspose of Lhe body

Toole recalled pulling off the high-
way onto a “forked” rond and remov-
ing the chiid's body ard a machele
{rom the car.

“I put both my hands on it {the ma-
chelel and 1 chopped his bead off."

Deeply immersed in !is thle, Toole
yuickly dismissed a reporter's ques-
tion sbout what way cone with the
body.

"I'm getting Lo that,” he sald, with
a brush of his hand,

Wrapping the head in the boy's
2hirt, he placed it in the hack seat and
Iaid the body in the trunie

Toole said he noliced » body of wa-
ler, “a creel,” next to the highway. 1L
wag there, he said, he thre w the head.

Aftér reaching Jacksor ville, Toole
said, he stuffad the child's body in a
discarded “leebox "

“l took that machete and [ cut out
some of his side and 1 ate s0me of it,”
Toole said.

Toole said he burned the body in
the cebox, lined his trunk with a
blanket and threw the sgiws In the
Lrunk.

The next day he put the v emains of
Adum in the city dump.

Police lound & machele, aod lis de-
seniplion w o consistent with ther avi-
dence, wvestigalars suy

Hollywonl pobice decline:! lo ¢com-
ment yesterday on Toulé's Jalest ver:
ston of Adam's deuth,

Adum wus the only chil he has
killed, Tuole said,

Ile suid he first mentiones:! it when

ducksotivilie Delective ) W. “Buddy"

Terty asked him if he had ever idllid
any children.

“I tried Lo blame Henry | Lee Lu-
cui) for il lo slart with, to cover up
for mysell,” Tdole said.

Police invedtigated the acy usalion
uguinsl Lucas and found that he could

nol have been 1n Nollywoad (n July

® Nov, I, 1N78 — A 19-year-old woman, Lisa Marilni, was
slabbed in her Kennewick, Wazh, sparintent.
Capl. L.L. Abarnathy with the Kennewick Police D

Bill Baker. 3 disitict sliorney's invesnigator, said 1t __w.._.ﬂn.u..u..slds chnemea iogn“._.-._._unn_“_osag__ g

“Law enforcement sgencies throughout the nation are
laking stepa to combat serial killers, but it's very difficult
If the person has no ties Lo the communily and ha's in and
clad in paja- ©ut in the same day," Abernathy sald. “Il’s frustrating.”

® Nev. 2, 1§78 — Police found the decomposed body of Parish, La. .
Dotlie Dement, 44, lying beside railroad tracks In Rossier  Breedjove with the parish sheriif’s office said Lucas ad- the deep end il you

Nu churges have been filed.

was found In a wooded ar

OOLE CHRONOLOGY

® July 19, 198 — The nude body ol Tummny Keel Con.
nery, 19, of Atlantic Beach way found in a ravine at Kath.
ryn Abbey Hanna Park. She had been wirangied.
No ¢l have been filed.
® Daee, 1980 — Brenda Eluine Murden. 28, of Misy
Muffet Lane waa stabbed death In her home.
No charges have been filed.
® January 1M1 — An unidentified woman, about 20
years old, was stabbed Lo death. Six weeks later, her body
R olf a stale highway in Bosgier them.
, “if you were that apprehensive . . . well, you'd go Em

Ottia Elwood Toole has besn
charged in the following cases: -

® Hov, §, 1978 — Kevin Key, 19, of
Austin, Texas, was returning from a
movie in Austin with girit Rita $s-

inzar of Geongstown, Faxas, on Nov 5.
Their car ran out of gascline and they

#n._wi.ﬁ :!.850:!& ] an-a.___. s“_ Toole
Took

ware found the next day, his

Georgetown and hers nesr
has not yet hean ¢ ' by McLenngn
County suthoritles the tisying of

18 yoer-oig ,“.-.q.-m._-m-..a_. is Wagna
* June 3, — Sgt. Louis r,
26, of the St. Temmany, La., sheriifs
dapartrment, was shot on hin way
home fram work. Another man con:
fessed and was convicted of the hilling,
but Iater recanted. Authorities i
dence links Toole snd Henry Les Lucas
to the killing,

® Hov. 4, 1080 — Mildred McKinney,
73, of Wiltamson County. Tauss, was
found strangied and beaten to death in
her home,

Toole lold suthorities that he and Lu-
¢as sent Toolw's nisca, Freida Powstl, to
Iha widow's door, When Mrs, McKinney
opened i, Luess and Toola ovwerpow-
ered her. Thiy bound het ‘with tele-
phons cord and panty hoie and spent
about an hour raping her before chok-
ing the worman to desth,

They then stached pleces of furniture
on her body with the intention of sian:
_.J & hre but did not. The fumiture wat
still on tap of her when the body wae
found. Tools with capital
murder, but Lucas Is only with
burglary becauss of Iach of proot, su
thorities sand

@ April 4, 1001 — Kalhy Whorton. 19,

Aabaut 11 p.m. tha same day,

of Bastrop, La., was abducted from a
college campus and shot Lwice. Her
body was discarded about live miles
away of & rural road.

& Aug. 3, 1981 — Sylvia Quayle, 34,
of Cherry Hiils Village, Colo., was shet.
stabbex and raped m her home. Toole
told police he picked a house at random
and climbed through the bathroom win-
dow. He suw her lying in bad and shot
her once In the head. He said he then
dragged har to the living room, sexuslly
assauited and stabbed her, :

® Jan. 4, 19R2 — George Nicholas
Sonnenbarg, 64, of Jacksonville re.
ceived severe burns in & Springfiald
boarding-house lire, He died from his
Njuriss 4N days lz2er. Toole has besn
convicled ol firsl-degrea murder and
sentenced Yo dis for this killing,

@ Fab. 1, 1982 — Sherry Alford. 16,
of Swartr, La., was shot as she was driv-
g down a highway. Her body was
found sbandoned near tha highway.
Robbery was the apparent motive

® Fab. 17, 1982 — Catharine C. Mar-
tin. 20, ot lowa. La., was sirangled and
stabbed 16 limes with a screwdriver,
Her bound body was tound fosting i
Biack Bayou, south of Lake Charles,
La, on Feb. 18,

She wit Isst seen _..-s_..,n a friend's
house in Laks Charles on Feb. 17 and
her car waa found abandoned on Louisi-
sna 101 in nearby Jellerson Parish

LY

® June 1, 1982 — Wiliam Boyd Hite,
22, of Big $pring. Tenas. wan hitchhi.
and was picked up oﬂ‘ Tools. Tools
snid that :"%3 aitroned Hite, byt that
Hite refused. Tools ssid he shot Hite
savers| times with two handguns, Hile's
body was found off tnimatate 20 in

Howaid Counly.

1981,

Tovle was aboul Adam's age when,
he said, he started seiting fires. They
#xciled im, he said.

Afan adull, he said; the flames sex-
ually pleased him. . .

The first fires were In empty fleids,
bul he soon advanced to houses,

His firs house fire wan set wheon he
wis 8 in un old abandoned house near
hiy home that hus parents had planned
o demolish,

He sald he would not sel fire (o &

- e e s m———————

huuse he knew was occupied

"1 know thal woulda't be night,”
Toole wald. “You see, 1 know burmung
things up sn"t right. 1 wouldn't wanl
.-2,:3.8 1o burn down a house 1 was
in.'

But last month, Toole was convict-
ed of the arson murder of George
Nicholas Sonnenberg, 84, who died
from injurieg he received in o board
ing-house fire in January 1062,

Touvle surlier was convicted of sel.
ting fire 1o two unovvupicd bulldings

TN

P G I3 iy WA S sl 30U LGt 1F

of killing someune.”

ugnize i parson like Lucas,” said Long of Odessa, Texas
He's a very quiet psrson, very polile, well-mannered 1¢
would be the last person in the world you would suspact

Sherlif Boutwsll of Willlamson County, Texas, added,

“The only thing people ¢an do s use more caution. Peuple

jusl need lo look askance al anybody they don't know

That's sad.”

in Jacksonville and was sentenced o
20 years in prisan.

He spesks of fire in spiritual terms.

“I% about ke o high, Like people
20 10 church. They ratse hell all week
and oh Sunday 1hey go 1o church. It
kind of Lfts them up. So it's really
what you call u high. Fires kind of do
Lhat for me."

His mother reabized her son had
troubles, he sid

“She tried lv put mé in a mentat in-
stitulion one tume, but she wasn't able
lo get 4 judge 1o do it," he said.

Now, he said, he wishes she had
succeeded,

"I do, 1 really do. I behieve it could
have heen contiolled. Il could have
been slopped if | had been i @ men-
il institubn and got heip,” he said,

Toole’s words became mesasured
when the conversalion (urned Lo his
relalionship wilh Lucas

Toivle said he first met Lucas in

Michigan, where Toole was visiting
Iiis brother. Toole said he offered Lu-
cas a place Lo stay if he ever came to
Javksonville,

Lucas came 10 Jacksonville in 1074
and moved in with Toole and his fam-
ily, wcluding Toolt's niece, Freida
Powell, Lucay wiad convicled of mur-
dering the girl iid Senténced to Life tn
a Texus pinson,

Toole and Lucus have been de-
scribud as homosexunl lovers, but

wis lo keep
tum,” Touule
» bt go-
my, wilh woitien oml nol having sex

"I like 10 keep |hem wondering,” he
Sanl,

When pressed (or an estimate
Toole tussed back hiy head, BE__—.._
au if searching hia mémory, and asid,
“AboUL 125"

When asked tont Lieax' claim of

(9]

And Baker, the Kaulman Counly investigator, warned.0)
“IU's a Lerrible thing. You can't tell them by losking aO

(o]

about il 100 much,”

killing 388, Toole said, "1 don't knuw
Henry is including what we did
gether”

"We started (alking about th
once, and 1 said 1 thought we'd do
about 50 or 80, and Henry said,
It's more than that,' *

Tovle sail he and Lucas kiled .
ple afler brealdng o thew house-
picking Lhemn up along Lthe road.

“We killed a lot of michhikers
pecple we picked up broken down
the side of the road.

“You really haven'l got a plun riu -
off the bal. You're really thinluny
helping those pegple.” i

The decision 1o kel wus made 4
cording 10 how the person acled -
they crilicized you, say Lus per-
made you mad, you kill them,” he « -
plained -

Often, Toole said, he was gh
drugs.

Tooke saxd hus firsl slaying victi:s
when he was 14, was a homosexw.
who had picked up Toole, stabbed 11-
lover to death and then made Tau:
repeatedly siab the body and tasi
ihe dead man's blood, ke sald.

The man then made sexual ad
vances lo Toole. Scered, Toole suul
he got inlo the man's car and 1 .r
over lum, lulling hum.

Toole wus o member of u de. .
worshipping cult called the llamls o
Death, b said.

Although he has not participated .
the cult rituals for at teasl a year, he
i he han ¢
wiays beng o followgr of Satan

"Onee the Hunds of Death gel v
they have you for lite,” Toole sid
_ Tocle suidd he does net fear tm
death that awails kit iIn Florda
electine charr. .o

“It mught not really happen,” h.
sald. “You can always appeal fu -
years and yeuars, :

Sul if it does happen, be bebeves i
life after death for himsell and 1
viclims,

1 don't say dead. ] aay the person
0 in a deepr sleep,” Toole said. ' Le
lieve in my mind 1hey'll wake up 11
another worlit -~ wenciivnation ™






